CARE SERVICES POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 29 October 2013

Present:

Councillor Pauline Tunnicliffe (Chairman)
Councillor David Jefferys (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Reg Adams, Roger Charsley, John Getgood,
Mrs Anne Manning, Catherine Rideout and
Charles Rideout

Brebner Anderson, Angela Clayton-Turner, Linda Gabriel, Brian James, Bebert Longi and Lynne Powrie

Also Present:

Councillor Robert Evans and Maureen Falloon

128 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

Apologies were received from Councillor Ruth Bennett and Councillor Diane Smith. Apologies were also received from Lynne Powrie and Leslie Marks: Maureen Falloon attended as her alternate.

129 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Pauline Tunnicliffe declared that she was a foster carer for the Council.

Councillor Mrs Anne Manning declared she was a member of the Fostering Panel.

Brian James declared an interest as a Shared Placement Provider and had a son in a supported living scheme.

130 QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING THE MEETING

3 questions were received from Mrs Sue Sulis and these are attached at Appendix A.

131 QUESTIONS TO THE CARE SERVICES PORTFOLIO HOLDER FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS ATTENDING THE MEETING

No questions were received.

132 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF CARE SERVICES PDS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 3RD SEPTEMBER 2013

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 3rd September 2013, excluding exempt information, be agreed.

133 WORK PROGRAMME AND MATTERS ARISING

Report no. RES13194

The Committee noted the following update:

An additional Health Scrutiny Sub Committee meeting might be needed in April 2014. This was proposed by Councillor Mrs Anne Manning and seconded by Councillor Catherine Rideout.

The Chairman provided feedback on her recent visit to the Bromley Autistic Trust. She was impressed by the work undertaken. The Trust received a £35,000 grant from Bromley.

Councillor Mrs Anne Manning had attended the St Paul's Wood Day Centre which was a provision for people with Dementia across all age groups. She was pleased to see the attendees enjoying many activities.

RESOLVED that the work programme and matters arising be noted.

134 PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF CARE SERVICES PORTFOLIO REPORTS

A) CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION STRATEGY

The Committee was reminded that in February 2010 the Executive agreed a package of measures to better support recruitment and retention of children's social workers. The main aims of the recruitment and retention strategy were to:

- Increase the recruitment of qualified Social Workers
- Decrease the number of qualified Social Worker leaving the Council
- Reduce the dependency and costs incurred through engaging expensive Agency Workers

An initial review of the strategy was carried out after two years of operation and the findings presented to the Executive Working Party for Child Safeguarding and Corporate Parenting. The strategy entered its final year of operation in April 2013.

Evidence from the comparative salaries data suggested Bromley needed to have an enhanced employment package to retain its profile in the job market for qualified social workers. The current package of measures was successful in increasing the appointment of new staff in the first two years of operation and the number of leavers had started to reduce. However in 2012/13 this progress had slowed and

there was a risk that the Council would see a return to the vacancy levels of 2010. If the package was removed Bromley salaries would not be competitive in relation to neighbouring London Boroughs and Local Authorities. Without the current enhanced package Bromley recruitment and retention would fall below unacceptable levels with disproportionate impact on the quality of frontline services. Therefore, the retention package needed to remain in place for the foreseeable future.

Action was being taken to raise the profile of Bromley jobs in the employment market. There had been some positive signs in the first five months of the 2013/14 financial year as the number of starters had increased. It was also noted that Bromley was anticipating the appointments of several newly qualified Social Workers from its "Grow our Own" and Bursary schemes later this year.

In relation to higher salaries in neighbouring boroughs the Director was pleased to report that, despite the lower remuneration, social workers chose to stay in Bromley for other reasons which indicated that they enjoyed working in the borough.

The Director explained the main problem was at senior practitioner level as staff could "cherry pick" where they wanted to go and, given that other boroughs had a higher remuneration package, Bromley needed to be more competitive.

Under the "Frontline" scheme Bromley had gained 5 staff in the previous year all of whom had stayed at Bromley. The scheme, once established, had been very successful.

The Committee was informed that the new package needed to be reviewed and funded and officer needed to ensure it attract the right candidates. Officers requested the committees support to work up a proposal in the next 6 months. This would be brought back to the committee once it had been agreed by the finance team.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder is requested to:

- 1. Extend the current scheme for the 2014/15 financial year by utilising the residual funding from the agreed recruitment and retention package for 2010 2014.
- 2. Agree the future funding of enhanced social worker salaries going forward.
- 3. Agree to extend the current scheme to include the Children with Disabilities Service. Extending the package is expected to cost an additional £7,374 per annum.

B) TACKLING TROUBLED FAMILIES GRANT DRAWDOWN

Report no. CS13036

The Committee considered a report which which set out expenditure on the Tackling Troubled Families Programme being delivered in Bromley. In addition officers requested agreement to drawdown additional grant funding from the central contingency.

Bromley received the ring fenced grant allocation for 2012/13 which totalled £535,200. The total grant allocation of £535,200 for 2012/13 was held in the central contingency. In September 2012, a report went to Executive to draw down £270,120 leaving £265,080 still unallocated. Inevitably there was a time delay in spending the funding in 2012/13 because of the need to identify specific families locally and recruit staff into the programme.

For the remaining unspent £522,727 from the TTF Year 1 grant allocation. The Executive agreed, in June 2013, the grant could be carried forward into 2013/14 and held in contingency pending approval of its release by the Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee. £258k of this was released by the Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee in September 2013 as part of the budget monitoring report. It was now recommended that £218k of the remaining 2012/13 funding be approved by the Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee to be drawn down to cover expenditure.

Bromley submitted a bid to Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) for the grant payment for 2013/14. DCLG encouraged local authorities to be ambitious when setting their targets for Year 2; Bromley increased the number of families it intended to target in Year 2 from 163 to 245 in order to optimise the Attachment Funding available as this would reduce year by year.

The attachment funding for Year 2 totalled £489,600. The central funding to cover the cost of the Coordinator, Data and Administration Posts as well as a contribution towards senior management time remained fixed at £100,000 and was in addition to the attachment funding. Consequently, for 2013/14, Bromley submitted a bid of £589,600 to DCLG. DCLG approved the 2013/14 bid. This would be paid in two stages by the end of July and end of September 2014.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder be requested to approve the drawdown of the remaining carry forward from contingency of £218,193.

C) FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF CHANGES TO YOUTH REMAND FRAMEWORK

Report no. CS13030

Officers presented a report which outlined changes to the Youth Remand framework introduced by the Legal Aid, Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders Act 2012 (Section 3).

The Committee were also presented with the indicative costs arising from the changes.

Under previous arrangements the Youth Detention Accommodation placement costs had been shared between the Ministry of Justice and the Local Authorities, with Local Authorities only responsible for a third of the costs for secure children's homes and secure training centres. Under the New framework Local Authorities were expected to meet all the costs of remands to Youth Detention Accommodation.

Local Authorities across England and Wales had raised concerns with the Ministry of Justice and the Youth Justice Board about the level of funding being transferred to Local Authorities to pay for the new responsibilities. In Bromley an estimated £500,000 full year pressure was identified for placements and other costs associated with children achieving Looked After Children Status as a result of the Legal Aid, Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders Bill (LAPSO). The allocated grant for Bromley of £73,734 was considered to be insufficient and as a consequence, a sum of £500,000 had been set aside in central contingency for 2013/14 should officers' forecasts regarding demands be proven.

Members asked how may actual individuals the numbers of bed nights referred to and were informed that it was a small number of approximately 6 people.

It was agreed that future reports would include more details on the numbers of individuals involved.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder be requested too:

- 1. agree to the drawdown of the Ministry of Justice youth remand grant allocation of £73,734 from the Council's central contingency into the Children's Care Service budget and refer to the Executive for their approval;
- 2. agree to the drawdown of £500,000 which has been set aside in the Council's central contingency to fund anticipated volume of remand placements and refer to the executive for approval.

D) WELFARE REFORM - BUDGET PRESSURES

Report no. CS13038

Members were updated on Homelessness pressures during 2013/14 and noted a summary of the range of initiatives being pursued to reduce the rising budget pressures wherever possible.

Homelessness prevention work was mainly funded through the annual DCLG homelessness grant of £500k and was used to cover a number of

Care Services Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 29 October 2013

preventative measures including debt advice, benefit and welfare reform and mortgage rescue/sustaining home ownership advice.

Members were pleased to note that 90% of those approaching homelessness were diverted away from statutory homelessness and temporary accommodation. But despite this level of work, the situation continued to deteriorate with the number of households in temporary accommodation rising to 850 (of which around 40% were placed outside of the Borough boundaries) at the end of September 2013. Of these 437 were in nightly paid forms of accommodation, which was the area of budget pressure. The current position presented a £1.1m in year budget pressure (£1.6m full year effect).

Members thanked the team for their excellent work and felt that part of the problem was that people did not seek assistance until the situation was irreversible.

When asked about vacant units Officers explained that monitoring of the housing stock was the key to having a minimal amount of vacant units. In Bromley, the number of vacant units was kept to a minimum and Officers reported that there were currently approximately 15 to 23 vacant units in the borough. The other element was to ensure units were affordable.

The chairman felt that homeless statistics needed to be closely monitored and that the Housing Woking Party may need to be re-convened.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder request the Executive to:

- 1.Release the £1m set aside in the contingency for homeless pressures.
- 2.Note that the additional funding of £1.2m will be included in the 2014/15 draft budget for new costs pressures.

E) APPROVAL TO DRAW DOWN THE SOCIAL HOUSING FRAUD INITIATIVE GRANT

Report no. CS13039

The Committee received a report on the drawdown of the Social Housing Fraud Initiative Grant.

In February 2013 the Department of Communities and Local Government invited local authorities to bid for ring fenced funding of up to £200,000 over a 2 year period to support housing associations with stock in their areas to identify and tackle incidents of social housing fraud. Following approval by the Portfolio Holder for Care Services, a successful funding bid was submitted achieving the maximum funds available for the 2 year period.

Officers now requested approval for a drawdown of this successful funding bid of £200K over 2 years.

The Committee noted there had been a great deal of success with identifying the incidence of fraud. The pilot referred to in the report suggested that up to 10% of housing stock could be subject to an element of fraud, such as tenants sub letting the property.

Members agreed greater publicity of how the department was tackling fraud could act as a deterrent to tenants.

Part of the grant would be used for training fraud officers at a cost of around £5k. The benefit of having trained fraud officers was they would have access to data that was not available to housing officers.

The Chairman praised officers for their hard work in reducing housing fraud.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder requests the Executive to approve the proposals for planned expenditure of this grant and approve drawdown of the grant funding totalling £200K, payable in two instalments of £100K. The initial instalment had now been received and was awaiting approval to drawdown to proceed with the project. Drawdown of £100k was required to meet the expenditure requirement in 2013/14

F) REVIEW OF WELFARE BENEFITS ADVICE CONTRACTS

Report no. CS13040

This report set out recommendations for the future delivery of welfare benefits advice services in the London Borough of Bromley. The report reviewed three contracts providing advice for a specific client group as follows: Broadway – Mental Health, Bromley Mencap – Learning Disability and Age UK Bromley and Greenwich – Older People. These services provide advice and support to vulnerable people on their benefits to maximise personal income.

Following the Care Service Policy Development and Scrutiny in December 2011a group was convened by Community Links Bromley to engage the Department for work and Pensions (DWP) and the Voluntary sector organisations in looking at how organisations could work together to provide support to vulnerable people around benefit changes. Progress had been slower than anticipated due to capacity issues with the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) and the volume of changes to the benefits system. The group was now working with the Universal Credit Delivery Working Group. In addition a workshop involving Stakeholders and partners, who worked with those affected by the changes, took place on 17th October 2013. The outcomes of this workshop would be contained in a future report.

The Broadway service was contracted via tender and started in April 2010. The original contract ended March 31st 2013 but with an option to extend for 2 years; a one year extension option was exercised in 2013/14. The Bromley Mencap and Age UK Bromley and Greenwich contracts were let for a 1 year term and would expire on March 31st 2014.

Care Services Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 29 October 2013

Officers explained that discussions with DWP were ongoing and they would expect more involvement once the benefit changes had been completed. There was also a need to discuss training with the department to ensure the needs of vulnerable people were met.

The Portfolio Holder for Care Services was minded to agree the recommendations but had reservations that the DWP should and must do more to provide the necessary support for vulnerable people.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder is requested to:

- 1. agree a 12 months extension of the three specialist welfare benefits advice service contracts until 31st March 2015. The extension option is already available with the Broadway Welfare Rights contract.
- 2. request officers to urge the DWP to progress its work in offering benefits advice to vulnerable groups.

G) CARE SERVICES PORTFOLIO BUDGET REPORT - SEPTEMBER

Report No. CS 13043

The Committee received the latest budget monitoring summary, based on activity up to the end of September 2013. This revealed that the projected overspend for 2013/14 had decreased slightly to £2,027k, although Officers were working hard to bring this down. The pressures were in three main areas – Adult Social Care, Operational Housing and Children's Social Care. The report also included a number of requests for carry forward of funding into the 2013/14 budget.

The report contained a number of comments on the budget from the Director for Education, Care and Health Services that set the context for the latest budget position. The Portfolio Holder for Care Services expressed his concerns at the projected overspends, whilst taking into account the reasons for the budget variations.

Members found the Director's comments very helpful. Following concerns raised by the Committee in relation to community equipment, the Director for Education, Care and Health Services explained that when residents no longer had a need for particular aids they were advised to dispose of them. The Government provided a list of aids which could not be re-used as they were difficult to "make safe".

In addition the cost of recovering some items was greater than the value of the actual item and in these cases recovery was not cost effective.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder be requested to:

- (i) approve the projected overspend of 2,027k is forecast on the controllable budget, based on information as at September 2013 before the release of any contingencies.
- (ii) note the full year effect for 2014/15 of £2.499m before the release of any contingencies;
- (iii) Refer the report to the Portfolio Holder for approval; and,
- (iv) Note the comments of the Executive Director in paragraphs 5.3 5.13.

H) PUBLIC HEALTH PROCUREMENT FRAMEWORK

Report No CS13047

Members noted that in November 2013 and June 2013 the Executive agreed a strategic approach for dealing with Public Health contracts post transfer to the Local Authority. Members considered a paper that focussed on the Category A: Standard contracts identified in the June report which would come to an end in March 2014 and now required retendering.

These contracts covered the 5 key Public Health Improvement Programmes. The contracts were managed within Bromley's normal corporate procurement regulations and were therefore subject to be retendered accordingly under our Contract Procedure Rules.

The Committee noted the details of the programmes and the positive impact they have had on service users and how Public Health intended to re-tender these services under a framework agreement that allowed a greater degree of flexibility during a period where Councillors and service heads were reviewing and making decisions around budget spend.

Other Boroughs had taken a keen interest in how Bromley proposed to handle the re-tendering of these contracts as they were also looking for a flexible and innovative solution. For a fee Bromley had agreed for Bexley to join their procurement framework. Lewisham, Lambeth and Southwark had also expressed an interest.

Members asked about the cross border General Practice issues and officers explained that it was possible that as services were allocated according to patients registered with GPs there would be transference of patients between boroughs. However the numbers of out borough patients accessing Bromley GPs was in line with the number of Bromley residents going out borough for treatment.

RESOLVED that the report is noted and the Portfolio Holder be requested to:

1. Approve the creation of a Public Health Framework which allows Public Health leads to commission services across these core programmes;

- 2. Approve this procurement approach as it provides the flexibility and assurance Members are seeking with regard to not committing a defined spend on these areas for 4 years, Instead it allows the Director of Public Health to prioritise spend and respond to baseline reviews and other corporate savings programmes;
- 3. Allow Public Health Leads to continue to work with other London Boroughs to achieve efficiencies through sharing best practice and opening up the framework to other local authorities.

I) DRAWDOWN OF PUBLIC HEALTH S256 MONIES - NHS HEALTH CHECK PROGRAMME

Report no CS 13046

The final budget outturn report presented to Care Services Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee in June 2013 highlighted social care funding via the PCT under s256 agreements, the report requested that £583k be drawn down so that it could be carried forward into 2013/14. Officers requested that £44k be approved from this funding to support two projects identified to maximise the effectiveness of the NHS Health Check programme.

The first project would focus on the prevention of diabetes and the second would evaluate the NHS Health Check Programme against the Pan-London quality standards and achievement of specific health outcomes.

The Committee expressed concern the report referred to Bromley not performing well in terms of identifying patients with non-diabetic hyperglycaemia. An audit highlighted that there were gaps in the data which suggested that patients may not always be receiving the diabetes assessment element of the NHS healthcheck. The reason for this could be that it is not always apparent when looking at summary data and therefore an in depth audit would be needed

Members queried the use of the funding if GPs were not conducting the NHS health checks correctly. Officers explained that in some cases GPs did not follow the guidance. Consequently the funding would be used to establish a clear picture of what was actually happening and a number of GP practices would be identified to pilot a pre-diabetic prevention protocol.

It was agreed that once a full protocol had been developed it would be reported to the Care Services Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder for Care Services is requested to:

1. note the report.

2. approve the drawdown of £44k to undertake the two projects outlined in section three of the report.

J) ADULT SOCIAL CARE - IMPACT OF THE CARE BILL AND FUTURE NHS FUNDING

Report no. CS13049

The Committee considered the second in a series of reports on the future of Adult Social Care, the first of which was considered by the Executive in July 2013 (Report CS 13017 Adult Social Care – Gateway review). The work on the market testing of Bromley's Direct Care Services report was now underway. Members were now asked to consider further information on the potential impact of the changes to adult social care proposed in the Care Bill which was published in May 2013, and to consider the changes now made necessary by the Government's proposals to integrate further health and adult social care. Officers also outlined proposals for a programme of detailed modeling of the impact on adult social care in order to be able to address the challenges arising from the Care Bill and the proposals from the Department of Health relating to the Integration Transition Fund and offers a way forward to allow the London Borough of Bromley to be best placed to exploit the opportunities presented by further integration with the NHS in the coming years.

Carrying out the detailed modelling would allow Bromley to be better prepared to implement the changes in 2015. The cost of this project would be £276k and officers proposed to request that the Executive agree to the allocation of the funding from the NHS social care funds held in central contingency. The current contingency budget was just in excess of £3.5m.

The Director highlighted that the report should, in all cases should refer to Integrated Transition Fund".

It was agreed that a further progress report would be brought to a future meeting.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder for Care Services requests Executive to:

- a) Note the proposals for the future of adult social care services contained in the Care Bill and the proposals for the Integration Transition Fund (ITF) and the potential implications for services and budgets from 2014;
- b) Support the allocation of £276k from the NHS social care funds to enable detailed financial and activity modelling of the implications of the Care Bill, the ITF and the Independent Living Fund to be carried out;
- c) Require a further Report to be brought to Executive in the early

summer of 2014 to allow options for the future delivery of adult social care to be considered; and,

d) Support the proposal that the Health and Wellbeing Board should be able to authorise the s256 agreement for 2013/14 at its meeting of 30th January 2014, and provide governance on behalf of the Council for all future work on integration between the health and social care sector.

135 CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE OUTCOME OF THE PEER REVIEW 2013

Report no 13035

As part of the London Borough of Bromley Children's Social Care continuous improvement programme, the London Borough of Bromley volunteered to be a pilot authority to test the introduction of the Local Government Association (LGA) Looked After Children Diagnostic Assessment. Officers provide the committee with the key findings of the diagnostic and the recommendations for future improvement.

In agreeing to be a pilot authority Bromley hoped to be assisted in planning in areas of:

- Achieving excellent outcomes for children in care and care leavers
- Quality of practice within Children's Social care
- Service user engagement
- Placement choice and stability.

A team of peers used their experience and knowledge to reflect on the quality of services and outcomes for children in care and care leavers within the London Borough Bromley. The purpose of the review was to help inform future improvements in services and to build on the current improvement programme.

The London Borough Bromley invited the Review Team to undertake the Pilot Care Practice Diagnostic as it had spent considerable energy working to improve safeguarding practice and had re focused attention to improving the outcomes for Looked After Children (LAC) and care leavers. The team undertook the review in June 2013.

Highlights from the executive summary indicated the Peer Team identified that the London Borough of Bromley understood and presented its context well. Overall the service was achieving key objectives and had made significant strides in improving services for looked after children however as

expected, there was more that could be done to increase the pace of change and improve outcomes.

The Peer Reviewers considered senior Councillors gave a strong lead on the priority of children's services, including a focus on Corporate Parenting.

It was the Peer Team's belief that the leadership of the current Assistant Director (Safeguarding and Social Care) has appropriately defined the scope and scale of the challenges in children's social care and is working to address them for LAC and care leavers.

The recent reorganisation of the Education, Care and Health Services had located of children's social care under one Assistant Director as well as the physical co-location of many staff in the Civic Centre, which provided an opportunity to respond in a more co-ordinated manner to the needs of children and families.

The team acknowledged that Bromley recognised the imperative of continuous improvement had increased its focus on LAC and had created, through the new Education, Care and Health Services Department and Director, a real opportunity to step up the pace of change.

They accepted the London Borough of Bromley regarded itself as a very "lean" Council, but acknowledged that elected members supported investment in additional social work staff and training and have enhanced the placements budget, which was an important indication of its commitment to the service for LAC and supports Social Work caseload management

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

136 EXTRA CARE HOUSING STRATEGY UPDATE

Report no. CS13045

The report updated Members on the Council's extra care housing strategy for older people which was originally agreed in 2007 as an alternative to placements in residential care homes. The report set out the current provision within the Borough and the current position with regard to numbers of people living in extra care and residential care as well as the 2013/14 budget position.

Although this was a positive report Members raised concerns that fewer than expected people had moved into extra car housing instead of residential placements.

Officers explained that Bromley was in the lower quartile of the number of people living in residential care. However staff were reviewing whether there were people who could move on from residential care. It needed to be carefully managed and take into account a persons age and time they had spent in care.

RESOLVED that the current position is noted.

137 QUESTIONS ON THE CARE SERVICES PDS INFORMATION BRIEFING

The information briefing had contained three items on (1) Adult Social Care Account, (2) Substance Abuse – Annual Report and (3) Independent Reviewing Officer Service 2012-2013 Annual Report.

No questions were received on the information briefing.

138 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION)
(VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000

RESOLVED that the Press and public be excluded during consideration of the items of business listed below as it was likely in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the Press and public were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information.

139 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE CARE SERVICES PDS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 3RD SEPTEMBER 2013

The Committee agreed the exempt minutes from the meeting on 3rd September 2013.

140 GATEWAY REVIEW TENANCY SUPPORT SERVICE FOR PEOPLE WITH MENTAL HEALTH NEEDS

Members considered the report and agreed the recommendations.

141 CONTRACTS FOR CHILDREN AND ADOLESCENT MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

Members considered the report and agreed the recommendations.

The Meeting ended at 8.47 pm

Chairman

Appendix A

COMMUNITY CARE PROTECTION GROUP PUBLIC QUESTIONS TO 29TH OCTOBER 2013 CARE SERVICES PDS COMMITTEE

1. MINIMUM WAGE PAY RATES FOR CARE WORKERS EMPLOYED BY HOMECARE AGENCIES CONTRACTED TO BROMLEY COUNCIL.

(a) What is the minimum hourly fee paid to agencies under **Bromley contracts?**

Response

The minimum hourly rate paid to home care agency providers is £10.99 per hour.

(b) Does the council have evidence which demonstrates that agencies are paying their care staff the Minimum Wage of £6.31 per hour, including travelling time? Response

As part of the tendering process all providers were required to submit evidence of paying the national minimum wage with their tender submission. They were also required to submit prices which covered all front line staff costs and all other costs associated with the cost of managing the service including but not limited to:

- **Travel and Mileage Costs**
- Training costs
- Office costs
- Management costs within the service
- On Call costs
- Start-up costs
- Corporate Overheads.
- Any other appropriate costs associated with management and delivery of the Service

What is the drop in funding for homecare provision from (c) **Central Government since 2010?**

Response

There is no separately identified funding for home care from the government. Funding for home care is covered by the Revenue Support Grant which is calculated according to the government's funding formula.

- 2. LONG TERM CARE FOR OLDER PEOPLE EXTRA CARE
 HOUSING STRATEGY UPDATE (Report no. CS 13045, agenda item
 9)
- (a) How many patients placed by LBB in (i) residential care homes and (ii) extra care housing are currently diagnosed with dementia?

Response

As at the end of March 2013 there were 298 people (aged 65 plus) categorised with mental health issues placed in residential care and 65 people (aged 65 plus) categorised with mental health issues placed in extra care housing.

(b) Is this an increase on previous years? – (Please provide this data for 2008 – 2013).

Response

	Residential Care	Extra Care Housing	
2008/09	275	33	
2009/10	278	41	
2010/11	300	46	
2011/12	297	45	
2012/13	298	65	

(c) Has Bromley received any re-imbursement for the failure of the care provider at Regency Court?

Response

There has not been a provider failure at Regency Court. The Council pays the care provider for the amount of care provided in accordance with their level of need as assessed by the Council.

3 PUBLIC HEALTH PROCUREMENT FRAMEWORK: ACTIVITY LEVELS & MEASURED OUTCOMES. (Report no. CS 13047, agenda item 7h)

(a) Please provide the Performance of Measured Outcomes figures/tables for Physical Activity 2010 – 2013, which appear to have been omitted from the report. (p.108)

Response

As we are moving towards a new way of procurement the information presented is on the outcomes that we will commission in the future. Please see attached sheet for the 2012/13 performance information.

Supplementary information for Q3a

Fresh Start Programme Summary 2012/13.

Quality Outcome Indicators.

The 2012/13 programme indicators evidenced that 873 patients were referred to the service of which 652 attended their initial assessment, 158 patients went onto evidence positive behaviour change and completed the 12 week programme.

Out of 158 patients to complete the programme 25% of them (40 patients) are supposed to improve their functional limitation, meaning there is an improvement in their health and an increased ability to perform everyday tasks. The Fresh Start programme demonstrated that 114 (72%) patients had in fact increased their functional limitation profile and displayed improvements in their health. The programme also over performed in the patients' level of satisfaction experienced and recorded self-esteem scores.

Although the number of referrals to the programme target was not achieved, the programme was still able to fulfil its number of completers. Therefore, the emphasis for commissioning the following year's programme was to highlight what training, marketing and outreach promotion the Fresh Start programme will complete. Since completing a full year of delivery in 2012/13 the service specifications targets were revised based on realistic expectations. The 2013/14 service specification increased the quality outcome indicators overall targets and threshold measures.

(b) Please provide the Performance of Measured Outcomes figures/tables for Weight Management 2010 – 2013, which appear to have been omitted from the report. (p.111)

Quality Outcomes Indicators	Annual Target	Cumulative number of annual target achieved	Variance	Threshold	RAG status - % of target achieved.
Numbers referred	1200	873	327	(95%)	72.8%
Numbers with Initial Assessment	720	652	68	(60%) Of those referred	90.6%
Completers	180	158	22	(25%) Of those with initial assessment	87.8%
Improved Function Limitation profile	45	114	+69	(25%) Of completers	253.3%
Self-esteem score	90	119	+29	(50%) Of completers	132.2%
Patient Satisfaction Level	85%	94.8%	+9.8%	85%	94.8%
Patient satisfaction No. returned	60	169	+109	(8%) Of initial appointment	281.7%
7 day physical activity recall	54	117	+63	(30%) Of completers	216.7%
Long Term Management Plan	45	164	+119	(25%) Of completers	364.4%

Response

This service only started in June 2012 and had not been commissioned previously. Data is presented from February 2013 when the service changed.

Susan Sulis

Secretary, Community Care Protection Group